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1. In Annex 7 “Model for Application of Prices for this offer and future specific requests” is 
requested a price per man-day for each specific profile. Taking into account that the contract 
includes Fixed Price (FP), Quoted Time & Means (QTM) and Time & Means (TM) specific 
contracts, how can a single price per profile apply for all those cases, especially since FP and 
QTM are performed in the premises of the contractor and TM assignments are performed in 
the premises of the customer? 

 
This call for tender is based on reopening of competition for all later specific contracts. 
For the framework contract, the tenderer should then present only maximum prices per profile, 
independent of the ordering mode.  
During the reopening of competition for attribution of a specific contract, the method (FP, QTM or 
TM) will be indicated in the request and the prices of the corresponding offers cannot exceed the 
maximum price indicated in the framework contract. 

  
2. Can you please confirm that for the Question 3.1 of Annex 11 “Questionnaire of award 

evaluation” (page 68 of the tendering specifications) no detailed effort estimation per sub task is 
expected to be provided by the tenderer? 

 
Yes, the offer concern only the specific request and not one of its sub-tasks 

   
3. Can you please provide a definition for the term “weight of deliverables”, and explain how is it 

used? The term is mentioned in the format of the Deliverables Tracking Matrix in section 6.5 of 
the Part I of the specifications, as well as in other sections of the document. 

 
The weight of a deliverable is a value (in percentages) representing the importance of the deliverable 
in comparison to the other deliverable and the whole request (for example: if there are 3 deliverables 
DL1, DL2 and DL3 for one specific contract or subtask, they can have the following weights: 50% 
for DL1, 20% for DL2 and 30% for DL3). 
This will be used to evaluate the long term performance level of the contractor. 
   

4. The question concerns inconsistencies related to the profiles included in the specifications 
document of this Call for Tenders. 
·         In paragraph 5.1 “Table of profiles”, page 12 of the technical specifications, the profile 
for TW and its corresponding minimum qualifications are missing.  

·         In paragraph 5.2 “Descriptions of profiles”, page 12 of the technical specifications, the profile 
description for Programmer (PR) is missing.  



·         In ANNEX 7 “Model for Calculation of Prices for this offer and future specific requests”, 
page 44 of the technical specifications, the entry for Programmer (PR) is missing. 
·         Finally, in ANNEX 13 – CV Form, page 75 of the technical specifications, in the “Profile for 
which employee is entered”, a tick box for Programmer is missing. 
Can you please clarify?  

  
There is a mistake in table 5.1. The line "Programmer (PR)" should be read "Technical Writer 
(TW)". The values in columns for minimum qualifications years of experience stay the same 

  
5. In question 2.3 of the Annex 11 “Questionnaire of award evaluation” is requested to “describe 

how you propose to measure and monitor the ordering process service quality indicators and 
service performance values”. Given that no ordering process service quality indicators and 
service performance values are presented in the tendering documentation, do you expect from 
the tenderer to propose its own quality indicators and performance values? The same 
clarification is requested for questions 1.3 about service management indicators and 3.6 about 
the delivery process service quality indicators and service performance values. 

  
Yes for 1.3 and 2.3.Concerning 3.6, the answer must be specific to the request for the PROD project. 
 

6. At Annex 15 of the tender specifications you give several interesting links to websites where we 
can find more information on RUP and hosting. Unfortunately the links did not work when we 
tried to open them. Could you please provide us with the correct or updated links to the 
websites where we can find the necessary information? 

  
Refer to "Questions & Answers (2)" on the call for tender's web site  
  

7. Regarding the financial offer, we face some difficulties to understand what is precisely 
requested. Would you please clarify what should be included in the financial proposal? 

In particular, we have the following questions: 
2.1. Concerning Annex 2, we understand the table (given for guidance purposes) more as a cost 
calculation model than a model for a financial offer.  
2.1.1 Could you please clarify what exactly we should provide for information in our financial offer in 
Annex 2?   
2.1.2 Scope: what is the scope of this financial offer?  
- The daily rate for each type of profile and/or the price for a fixed price project of a given size?  
- Is this financial offer related to the case study of Annex 12 or is it a general offer in response to your 
call for tender? 
2.2. Concerning Annex 7, could you please clarify what we should sum up in the total cost?  
2.3. Concerning the different types of contract, the costs of profiles working extra-muros at our 
premises in different countries may be lower than the costs of profiles working intra muros at your 
location. Should we propose 2 prices per profile: one for on-site work and one for off-site work? 
-What will be the ratio between TM, QTM and Fixed Price requests in the framework contract? 
  
Refer to Corrigendum on the call for tender's web site  
For questions 2.2 and 2.3, also refer to question 1  
  
 

8. In paragraph 4.7 of Annex 10 at page 60 of the tender specifications you specify: “The CV must 
be presented with the form in Annex 11…”. Could you please confirm that you mean the CV 
template of Annex 13 and not Annex 11, which is a questionnaire for award evaluation? 



  
Yes, the annex 11 has moved and is indeed Annex 13. 
 

9. In the introduction of the case study of Annex 12, it is specified as followed: “The subject of the 
current request is to ensure the further development and maintenance of the PROD system 
over the next two years. The request also covers the takeover of the existing system, its further 
development and maintenance and its handover after the one year period.” 
Could you please provide the exact chronology of the project as you talk about a 1 year period 
and 2 years of development and maintenance? Will the request mentioned in the paragraph be 
for 1 year or 2? What are the respective durations of the request’s work packages?  

  
The development and maintenance of the PROD will be spread over 2 years. 
The current specific request will cover one year (QTM1, QTM2 and QTM3).  
The QTM3 contains the necessary hand-over activities for the next contractor, for the second year. 
 
  

10. In paragraph 4.2.1 of the technical description at page 4 of the tender specifications you specify: 
“The deliverables of this work package include the following non-exhaustive list: the software 
development, test and production infrastructures, the security convention to access hosting 
environments at the Commission’s data centre.” 
Do you plan to have applications hosted outside the European commission, i.e. in our 
datacenter?  
Should we understand from the above paragraph that we are responsible for implementing 
and/or operating production infrastructure and/or user acceptance testing infrastructure 
environments? 

  
The hosting of information systems is not part of this framework contract. 
The contractor should only assume the setup of Development and Test(s) environments and provide 
guidance to ensure that the Production environment is well tuned at the hosting organization. 
 

11. Can you provide us with details on the estimated volume of orders for Fixed-Price and QTM 
(extra-muros), and Time&Means (intra-muros) ? 

 
Refer to "Questions & Answers (2)" and question 1  
 

12. Our understanding from page 23 of the specifications is that both annex 2 and annex 7 must be 
filled-in as part of the financial proposal. We would appreciate a confirmation on our 
understanding, and also a clarification regarding the relation between these 2 forms. For 
instance, should annex 2 be a summary based on the detailed numbers given in annex 7 ? 

 
Refer to Corrigendum, published on the call for tender's web site 
 

13. Page 29 of the specifications says: “A ration between the points and prices per profile will then 
be computed”. Is this ratio calculated based on the form in annex 2, or is it based on the form in 
annex 7 ?  

 
Refer to "Questions & Answers (2)" on the call for tender's web site 
 



14. Also, can you provide the formula that calculates the number representing “prices per profile” 
mentioned on page 29 of the specifications ? 

 
The prices per profile are the prices per man-day given by the tenderer in annex 7.  
 

15. Ref. selection questionnaire presented in annex 10, Question 4.6, page 60 of specifications: is 
there a minimum required number of staff of the tenderer, per profile and per expertise fields ? 

 
The minimum number is 1 (for all fields of expertise mentioned in that question). 
 

16. Regarding required CVs: our understanding is: 
from the Contract Notice and also from the specifications, page 28: tenderers must provide min 
3 CVs per profile, i.e. 3 CVs x 10 profiles = 30 CVs in total. 
Yes 
 

  from specifications, pages 12-16: each of these 30 CVs should cover the minimum 
requirements detailed in pages 12-16, per the respective profile of each CV. 
Yes, every CV must cover the requirements (knowledge, skills and experience) described in 
page 12-16 for the corresponding profile 

 
17. Regarding page 60, question 4.7 of Annex 10: please confirm that the requirement for CVs is 

minimum 3 CVs per profile (total of 30 CVs) - where 1 CV equals 1 distinct permanent staff. 
We also understand from the same question that:  
a)      each CV should be working in the area of the required services. 
b)      each CV should include a description of its expertise. The minimum requirements for the 
expertise are those detailed in pages 12-16 of the specifications, for each profile. 

 
The tenderer must provide 3 CVs per profile (1 CV equals one distinct permanent staff). 
Each CVs should reflect the requirements described in page 12-16 
 

18. Can an offer include more than 3 CVs per profile, i.e. more than 30 CVs in total ? 
 
Yes, under the condition that the additional CVs respect the requirements described in page 12-16 
 

19. Regarding page 62, Question 5.3 of Annex 10: please confirm that the template for the project 
reference form is in annex 14. 

 
Yes 

 
 


